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DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR 
PERMANENT IN JUNCTION AND MONETARY RELIEF 

AS TO DEFENDANTS PHOENIX AVATAR, LLC AND DJL, LLC 

On April 23,2004, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("Commission" or "FTC"), 

pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. 

$5 53(b) and 57b, and the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing 

Act of 2003 ("CAN-SPAM), 15 U.S.C. 5 7706(a), filed a Complaint for Injunctive and Other 

Equitable Relief against Defendants Phoenix Avatar, LLC ("Phoenix Avatar"); DJL, LLC 

("DL"), Daniel J. Lin; Mark M. Sadek; James Lin; and Christopher M. Chung. 



The FTC now has moved for entry of a default judgment on all counts of the Complaint 

against Defendants Phoenix Avatar and DJL, pursuant to Rule 55(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure. The FTC's Motion for Entry of Default Judgment Against Defendants Phoenix 

Avatar and DJL is hereby granted, and IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, AD JUDGED, AND 

DECREED as follows: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and the parties 

hereto. 

2. Venue, process, and service of process are proper. 

3. Defendants Phoenix Avatar and DJL have engaged in activities in or affecting 

commerce, as "commerce" is defined in 15 U.S.C. $44. 

4. This action was instituted by the FTC under Sections 5, 12, 13(b) and 19 of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $8 45,52,53(b), 57b and CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.C. § 7706(a). The 

Commission seeks permanent injunctive relief and monetary and other equitable relief for 

deceptive acts or practices by Defendants Phoenix Avatar and DJL in connection with the sale of 

diet patch products and the initiation of commercial e-mail messages in violation of CAN- 

SPAM. Pursuant to Sections 



6.  Defendants Phoenix Avatar and DJL were served with the Complaint and 

Summons as required by Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 



that contained, or were accompanied by, header information that is materially false or materially 

misleading in violation of Section 5(a)(l) of CAN-SPAM, 15 U.S.C. § 7704(a)(l). 

11. The Court 



DEFINITIONS 

1. "Asset" or "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to 

any real and/or personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, 

equipment, fixtures, general intangibles, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, 

notes, accounts, credits, contracts, receivables, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever located. 

2. "Assisting others" means: (1) performing customer service functions including, 

but not limited to, receiving or responding to consumer complaints, idntoifyng and 





endorsement, any false or misleading oral or written statement or representation in connection 

with the marketing, advertising, promotion, offering for sale, sale or provision of any weight-loss 

products, or any other products or services, including, but not limited to: 

A. Representing that the Med Diet Patch, Slim Form Diet Patch, or any other diet 

patch, causes weight loss; 

B. Misrepresenting that any product, or any ingredient contained in it, increases 

metabolism, decreases appetite, andfor reduces food cravings; 

C .  Misrepresenting that any product, or any ingredient contained in it, is effective in 

the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of any disease; 

D. Making any representation about the health benefits, performance, efficacy, or 

safety of any product unless, at the time of making such representation, Defendants possess and 

rely upon competent and reliable scientific evidence that substantiates the representation; 

E. Misrepresenting any other fact material to a consumer's decision to purchase any 

product; and 

F. Assisting others who violate any provision of Paragraphs A through E of this 

Section. 
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fund. In the event that direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially impracticable or funds 

remain after redress is completed, the FTC may apply any remaining funds for other equitable 

relief (including consumer information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to the 

Defendants' practices alleged in the Complaint. Any funds not used for such equitable relief 

shall be deposited to the Treasury as disgorgement. Defendants shall have no right to challenge 

the FTC's choice of remedies under this Subsection. 

IV. COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring and investigating 

compliance with any provision of this Order: 

A. Within ten (10) days of receipt of written notice from a representative of ght D e f e n d a 1 2 8 s - 0 m 
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C. Defendants shall permit representatives of the Commission to interview any 

employer, consultant, independent contractor, representative, agent, or employee who has agreed 

to such an interview, relating in any way to any conduct subject to this Order. The person 

interviewed may have counsel present. 

Provided, however, that nothing in this Order shall limit the Commission's lawful use of 

compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $5  49,57b-1, to 

obtain 



VI. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY 



action is to take place, Defendant shall notify the Commission as soon as is practicable after 

obtaining such knowledge. 

(B) One hundred eighty (1 80) days after the date of entry of this Order, Defendants 

shall provide a written report to the FTC, sworn to under penalty of perjury, setting forth in detail 

the manner and form in which they have complied and are complying with this Order. This 

report shall 



receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, are hereby restrained and 





XII. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter 

for all purposes. 

IT IS SO ORDERED, this 2 9 % a y  of ,2005 

Honorable James F. ~olderman 
United States District Judge 

Respectfully submitted by: 

Steven M. ~ e r n i k o f f  ' 
William J. Hodor 
Jason K. Bowler 
Federal Trade Commission 
55 E. Monroe St., #I860 
Chicago, IL 60603 
(3 12) 960-5634 [Phone] 
(3 12) 960-5600 [Fax] 


